TOWN OF STONY POINT
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
Minutes of December 2, 2021



PRESENT:						ALSO PRESENT:
Mr.  Keegan						Dave MacCartney, Attorney
Mr.  Anginoli 						John Hager, Building Inspector
Mr.  Lynch 						
Mr.  Strieter 
Mr.  Gazzola 
Ms.  Davis (absent)
 
Chairman Wright 

Chairman Wright:  Good evening.  Welcome to the Stony Point Zoning Board of Appeals.  I call this meeting of December 2, 2021, to order.  Please rise for the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited, and roll call taken.  

Chairman Wright:  We have a couple of items on the agenda.  I will make a note though that the request of Alexis Pinos was withdrawn.  So we will keep that on the agenda for tonight.  We will reschedule it for whenever they resubmit; I suspect.  

I will take a motion to accept the minutes of November 18, 2021.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to accept the minutes of November 18, 2021; seconded by Mr. Keegan.  All in favor; the motion was accepted.  

Chairman Wright:  With that we will go ahead and start out with the request of Jianny Villajo.

Request of Jianny Vallejo – App. #21-18 (area variance (2)

A variance from the requirements of:

1.  Chapter 215-22 – no principal structure shall be located any closer to any street or property line than the required minimum setback in the bulk table or the established setback if such exists.  Accessory structures and uses are permitted within the required setback other than the front setback but not within any required yard, except as specifically authorized herein; and 
2. Chapter 215-26 – (corner lots) a front yard and front setback shall be required on a corner lot from each street line.  There shall be designated on the site plan which of the remaining yards or setbacks shall be the side and rear yard or setback, respectively.  In the event that only one side of such lot meets required street frontage, that side shall be considered the front yard for the purpose of determining the rear yard setback; fifty foot front yard setback required, 20 foot front yard setback provided, 30 foot variance needed for a 10 x 14 accessory shed located at 133 Mott Farm Road, Tomkins Cove, New York.  

Section:  10.02          Block:  3          Lot:  41          Zone:  RR

Chairman Wright:  This is a continued Public Hearing for the outstanding item from the last Public Hearing was a G.M.L. which we got and that’s been approved.  Is the applicant present?  Can you just come up here and identify yourself?

	Jianny Vallejo	
	133 Mott Farm Road
	Tomkins Cove, New York

Chairman Wright:  So with that, the Public Hearing is still open so does anybody on the Board have any questions for Mr. Vallejo on the application?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Mr. MacCartney, you have any in-put on this application?  

Mr. MacCartney:  No.

Chairman Wright:  Okay, so does anybody from the public have any in-put?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  So if there is no in-put from the public, I will take a motion to close the Public Hearing.

***MOTION:  Mr. Keegan made a motion to close the Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Lynch.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  We will have a decision for you in two weeks.

Chairman Wright:  Next item on the agenda is the continued Public Hearing for the request of Bruce Miller.  We don’t have the decision because there were some G.M.L. items that came back.

Request of Bruce Miller – App. #21-17 (area variances (4))

A variance from the requirements of:

1. Chapter 215, Article V, section 15 A – use d.1, column 7 – minimum ten feet rear and side yard depth required; 5 feet rear depth provided; 5 feet variance necessary; and
1. Chapter 215, Article V, section 15 A – use d.1, column 10; maximum development coverage 20%; coverage of 25% proposed; 5%  coverage variance necessary; and
1. Chapter 215, Article VII, section 15-30B – the distance between a principal building and an accessory building shall not be less than 15 feet; 13.7 feet spacing provided; 1.3 feet variance necessary; and
1. Chapter 215, Article VII, section 30 C – for any accessory building having a height in excess of 15 feet, the additional footage in excess of 15 feet shall be added to the rear and side yard requirements; 15’5” height proposed (accessory building); 5” variance necessary.

For a detached garage located at 2 Lavender Lane, Tomkins Cove, New York.    

Section:  10.03          Block:  1          Lot:  49          Zone:  RR

Chairman Wright:  Is the applicant or a representative present?  If you could just identify yourself?

	John Perkins – Architect for the Millers
	18 Skahen Drive
	Tomkins Cove, New York

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give is truthful?”

Mr. Perkins:  Yes, it is.

Chairman Wright:  Did you get a copy of the G.M.L. back from the County?

Mr. Perkins:  Yes, I did.

Chairman Wright:  Do you have any comments on that?

Mr. Perkins:  I’m not sure I understand item #4 where they are referring to the building having a height  in excess of 15 feet shall be added to the rear and side yard requirements.  
Chairman Wright:  Yes, I think that kind of stumped us a little bit, too.  Mr. MacCartney, do you have any thoughts on that one that we were discussing earlier?

Mr. MacCartney:  My only thought, and we had talked to John about it as well, it seems that what they are saying is that when you are over 15 feet in height, you have to take that excess and you have to add it to the rear and side yard requirements on the bulk table and here we got 15½ feet so that means you have to add 6 inches, a half a foot, to the each of the setbacks and that’s your new requirement if you are going to have that height.  I think that is what they are saying.  John is that the way you are reading it.

Mr. Hager:  Yes.

Mr. MacCartney:  And so they are saying that the bulk table should be amended to indicate that the lot area, front setback and rear setbacks…oh, that’s in addition, okay in addition that those are pre-existing non-conforming with the area of the setback and two setbacks.  So I suppose the variances that you are asking for are…the rear yard is one of them, so then you have development coverage…so it is interesting.  So they are saying that, according to the County, the County is suggesting that the relief that they are asking for is not a variance from the height.  That you allowed the 15 foot 5 inches height, but what it means is that you’ve just got to have a bigger setback in the same amount.

Mr. Perkins:  Yes, understood.  That would be the side yard?

Mr. MacCartney:  Yes and I think on your plan your 5 feet on the side yard; is that what you are saying?

Mr. Perkins:  Yes.

Mr. MacCartney:  And so they are saying okay well you have the 5 feet that means that the variance that you are asking for, for side yard is not for 5 feet you are supposed to have 10½ feet, so you actually need a 5½ foot variance instead of a 5 foot variance.

Mr. Perkins:  Right, we are kind of caught between a rock and a hard place there because if we do comply with that standard of increasing the distance from the property line we are going to worsen another condition by making it closer to the house.

Mr. MacCartney:  Right, which you explained at the last hearing which is why you are trying to strike that balance between either move it one way and you decrease the distance to the primary structure, or you move it the other way and you decrease the distance of the side yard, so you try to get it right there.  So the nature of the County’s comment is just, it is just deciding…it’s certainly a different take on what the variance is that is required.  Am I right John?

Mr. Hager:  Yes, I agree with that.  If you have sufficient side yards you wouldn’t need a variance for the roof height if you were able to provide the 10.5, but in this case you are not able to do so if you would rather grant the variance for the half a foot, side and rear yard, and then those two requests we can scratch the #4 as a necessary variance. 

Mr. MacCartney:  I guess really what it is, is looking at the same coin on two sides; right.  You are saying well it could be a variance from that height requirement, that whole section, or it is a bigger variance on the side yard.  The dimensions are the same no matter what.

Chairman Wright:  Nothing changes structurally.

Mr. Hager:  The end result would be the same.

Mr. MacCartney:  I got it.  I know how to deal with that.  Unless the Board has…does the Board have any questions about that or any problems with that?

Mr. Lynch:  No.

Mr. MacCartney;  So in terms of complying with that County comment they are asking that you amend the bulk table to just indicate the lot area front setback, the rear setbacks are existing non-conforming.  I’m assuming that’s no problem at all.  You would comply with that?

Mr. Perkins:  Yes.

Mr. MacCartney:  Then the only other…the first two G.M.L. comments are pro forma.  You’ve got to obtain any permits from the County Highway Department, and assure the compliance with the County Sanitary Code.  I am sure that’s no problem that could be made a condition of the grant if the Board were inclined to grant.  The only other one that is substantive is #3 where the County is saying because one of the variances that you are asking for is a lot coverage variance that you must use pervious pavers and/or other porous materials wherever possible.  I don’t know how that…John, how does, if you know, how does the Stony Point Code deal with pervious pavers.  Are those just a mitigating factor or if you put in pervious pavers does that no longer count against the lot coverage?  Some Codes, different Codes treat it both ways.  I’ve seen some that say if it’s pervious it doesn’t count any longer.  Others, I’ve had one where it went to an interpretation, and it went to an “Armageddon” and the Board had to interpret the Code because it literally wasn’t clear.  I didn’t look at the Code on that.

Mr. Hager:  I’m not sure we want to get into interpreting…getting into a real strict interpretation here, but I think the jist of this comment from the County is if the applicant’s willing to substitute some pervious pavers for some impervious pavement areas that they would be acceptable, and I think that’s what they are looking for this Board to encourage.  I don’t think I would read too much into it other then asking the applicant if they would be able to comply with this request and maybe some of the area that was considered to be paved could be substituted with some pervious pavers.

Mr. Perkins:  Logistically, that becomes a problematic in snow removal.  I don’t know if you ever used a snowplow on paving brick.  It damages the paving bricks or the pavers.  It is problematic in snow removal.  Where we are placing the garage we are kind of at an angle, so we are interrupting that paving surface.  If we were to stop it at that point and continue back, there is going to be probably a good 40 feet of area that is going to be pavers that’s going to be difficult to remove snow from.  

Mr. Hager:  Is there any walking paths or anything that could be substituted?

Mr. Perkins:  Not really.

Mr. Anginoli:  If I may ask a question,  it says wherever possible.  Who decides whether it is possible or not?  That’s another open-ended statement.  

Mr. Anginoli:  If he decides it’s not possible then, who questions that.  

Mr. MacCartney;  Well I guess at the end I think that ultimately the applicant can say look it is impossible, but if you all in your judgment you look at it and you say well look I don’t think that’s really true.  You can do it here or you can do it there or you say you know what it’s technically possible, but it is totally infeasible.  It is cost prohibitive.  I think it is a collective exercising judgment here.

Chairman Wright:  I think if we could ask the applicant to go ahead and make the case, if it is going to be a burden to do it, I think we can consider that and make it part of the decision.  

Mr. Anginoli:  I think a good-faith effort is a…

Mr. Perkins:  I would be willing to encourage Mr. Miller to price out both the pricing of the difference between macadam and pavers and logistically what it would take.  Part of the infeasibility of it is also going to be maintenance.  Like I said it’s not as if you could snowplow over pavers.

Chairman Wright:  I think if Mr. Miller would take into consideration the decision and it makes sense.  It is better for the applicant makes that point so we can make it part of the decision.  

Can you just identify yourself?

	Bruce Miller
	2 Lavender Lane
	Tomkins Cove, New York

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give is truthful?”

Mr. Miller:  Yes.  I had thought about that because there is going to be a slight slope from the existing driveway down to the new garage location and I wanted to put a catch basin right there and catch whatever drainage there was and drain it appropriately.  Pavers in that location, I don’t see how that could work for me because I work on my boat, and I work on my cars, and I need to work in that area.  
Chairman Wright:  I think the Board generally understands the predicament, but what we asking for is that you write it up as a justification so we can include it in our decision.

Mr. Miller:  I would like to do a catch basin or something that would catch anything.

Mr. Anginoli:  Wherever possible.  

Mr. Hager:  Just show to atleast be able to demonstrate that you considered it…complying with that and if that’s not possible very well.

Mr. MacCartney:  I don’t know what the scope of the rest of your project is, but if you have any other spots that you are planning to redo, like walkways that you are going to redo anyway maybe that is something that you can consider.

Chairman Wright:  I don’t know if this is workable Mr. MacCartney, but if you come up with something in the next week or so and you send it to Kathy and she will send it to Mr. MacCartney so we can see it, we can share it normally as a group and if it sounds reasonable we might be able to accommodate you at the next meeting.  Does that make sense?

Mr. MacCartney:  I certainly think that, that’s a good idea because you’ve been having to keep coming back, but it’s nobodies’ fault, but it’s…we would like to see if we can take care of you by the next meeting if at all possible.

Mr. Perkins:  Okay, I appreciate that.

Chairman Wright:  Okay, thank you very much.  So I will open it up to the public.  If there is any questions, from the public on this application?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Since there is no in-put from the public…we will continue the Public Hearing until the next meeting and then we will close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Perkins;  Is it possible to render a decision at the next meeting?

Chairman Wright:  I think that is what we are going to try to do.  That’s why I said if you can get us that documentation up front so we can understand where you are going with this maybe we can make a decision at the next meeting.

Ms. Kivlehan:  If you can get the stuff to me before I send out the information for the next meeting, that would be helpful.  I need the information by December 8, 2021.

Chairman Wright:  The next item on the agenda is the request of Mike Pappas.

Request of Mike Pappas – App. #21-16 (area variances (2))

A variance from the requirements of:

1. Chapter 215, Article V, section 15A – use h.2, column 4 – minimum 35 feet front yard depth and setback required; 11 feet front yard depth and setback provided; 24 feet variance necessary; and 
1. Chapter 215, Article V, section 15 A – use h.2, column 5 – minimum 50 feet combined front side yard setback required; 31.2 feet combined front yard setback provided; 18.8 feet variance necessary

For additions and alterations for a two-family residence located at 33-35 Wood Avenue, Stony Point, New York.  

Section:  15.19          Block:  3          Lot:  39          Zone:  R1


Chairman Wright:  Is the applicant or representative present?  Can you please come up and identify yourself?

	John Perkins – Architect for Mr. Pappas
	18 Skahen Drive
	Tomkins Cove, New York

Chairman Wright:  Again, I think we had some G.M.L. items on that one.  It is a little bit more extensive this time.

Did you have any questions on…first of all do you have a copy of them?

Mr. Perkins:  I do.

Chairman Wright:  Are there any questions you want to bring up to the Board?

Mr. Perkins:  I’m not sure what their jurisdiction is between Zoning use…I guess they are  Rockland County Planning they can do what they want, but when it comes to commentary about the aesthetic of the structure and how the doors look and that type of thing, I kind of think it’s a little in excess of analytical review of the project.  I do understand the concerns, but again I do think it’s….

Chairman Wright:  So which ones specifically are you referring to on that one.

Mr. Perkins:  Let’s see.

Mr. MacCartney:  Actually, you know what might be…

Mr. Perkins:  #6.

Mr. MacCartney:  #6.  So the way I read #5 and #6; both, is that the County is concerned with the…they want assurances from the applicant as to how that, the garage structure, is going to be used.  I think the County is reading between the lines.  They don’t want:

a. Be it converted to living space or some new other commercial use; and
b. They want to make sure that that’s nailed down that this Board, if it grants you the variance, isn’t opening the door to some totally unintended legal or illegal use.  

Mr. Perkins:  We could prepare a brief narrative kind of explaining that it’s going to be for two different tenant uses as well as the owner’s use.  So three people are actually going to use this garage and as far as attic space again three people are going to be using this place for storage so.

Chairman Wright:  Any comments from the Board?

Mr. Lynch:  It sounds good with me.

Mr. MacCartney:  I think that would be very helpful and then while we are here we mine as look at each of these and just make sure that we are going to be on the same page on how these are going to be dealt with.

a. #1 and #2 are typical – no problem.  I am sure you agree to comply with those.

Mr. Perkins:  Yes.

Mr. MacCartney:  

b. #3 is that the development coverage in F.A.R. calculations must be provided on the site plan to verify accuracy.  I am sure you would go ahead and do that?

Mr. Perkins:  No problem.

Mr. MacCartney:  

c. #4 if the site plan should be amended to show that the existing hedge in front of the garage and the existing driveway would be removed.  I am sure that is not a problem?
Mr. Perkins:  No.

Mr. MacCartney:  

d. #5 and #6 you are going to provide the narrative that you just discussed.  That will give the Town comfort and give the County Planning comfort and then if the Board is inclined to grant the variances; compliance with that narrative and with the different requirements that the County Planning has laid out in both of these two could be a condition of a grant if you are interested in going in that direction.
e. #7 is saying the bulk table must be amended to indicate that the lot area…the width on Spring and etc., etc., of their existing non-conforming use.  I am sure you are going to amend the site plan anyway that, that would be easy for you to just add.

Mr. Perkins:  Yes.

Mr. MacCartney:  

f. Then they are identifying an issue with the height.  The bulk table says the height is 35, but the plans indicate that it is 27.8.  Do you know which it is?

Mr. Perkins:  I disagree with that statement.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay.

Mr. Perkins:  I believe that this is a function of Mr. Celentano’s survey preparation is that he typically, if he doesn’t know at the time he prepares the survey he will use a reduction to kind of indicate that it is less than 35 feet.  He didn’t put that less than sign in front of it; he usually indicates less than 35 feet.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay.  So if you can amend that bulk table anyway why don’t you just amend it to put in the right height.

Mr. Perkins:  I will put the specific height in there.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay, good.

Mr. Perkins:  The 27 is accurate.

Mr. MacCartney:

g.  #8 it says throughout the Z.B.A. application form the applicant indicates that a use variance is required.  Two family detached residences are allowed as a conditional use.  The application form must be, the form must be,  amended to indicate that the existing use is an allowed conditional use.  It’s not a use variance.  In addition, the conditional use application must be made to the Planning Board for the proposed addition.  

So I wasn’t tuned into that issue in looking at it here.  John, what’s…

Mr. Hager:  The property is currently occupied as a two-family.  So I don’t believe it’s any requirement to apply to the Planning Board to expand that use.  The Planning Board if it was a new application it would be involved in the site.  This one’s got pre-existing status.  I don’t know if it pre-dates or if it was granted a special use permit, but I don’t believe there’s any requirement to be returned to the Planning Board for this.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay, so I think the way that will get resolved is that might be an over-ride or an explanation or maybe it’s just look between now and then take another look.  Is the Code…is there any language in the Code that maybe the County is picking up on that because it is an existing, it’s an existing two-family right now?

Mr. Lynch:  Yes.

Mr. MacCartney:  And it’s just that we are expanding the two-family…we are not expanding into a three-family, just expansion of the two-family physical space.  Is there any language in the Code that maybe says that when you do that you have to come back and get a new conditional use permit?

Mr. Hager:  I don’t think so.

Mr. MacCartney:  I wonder.  But, you don’t have to give the answer right now, but that’s before the next meeting.  If the answer is absolutely not, then that’s the answer for this G.M.L.  If the answer is yes, well then the applicant will go to the Planning Board and apply for the conditional use permit for the existing use.  I think that’s the way to handle that.  

h. #9 and #10 are just re-statements of the law.  
i. #11.1 and #11.2 and #11.3 are observations only; not requirements. 

 Is there anything any of the Board members see there that they would like to address as an observation…the scale?

Mr. Perkins:  We can adjust that on the site plan.  

Mr. MacCartney:  That takes care of that.

Chairman Wright:  Any other questions?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Mr. Perkins, if you can get us the write-ups between now and the next meeting.

Ms. Kivlehan:  If you can get us the information, by Wednesday, December 8, 2021, so when I send out the packets to the members they will have the information.  

Chairman Wright:  Can we have a decision on those?

Mr. MacCartney:  Depending upon when it comes in, I will do my best.  Well I know the applicant will need a little time to get all this up..

Mr. Perkins:  If it means getting it done faster, I will get it to  you faster.

Mr. MacCartney:  I will do my best.  I think I can do it.

Mr. Perkins:  I will try and have it all to you...by the 8th.

Chairman Wright:  We will do our best efforts to have the decisions then.

Mr. Perkins:  I appreciate that.  Thank you.

Mr. Keegan:  Just one thing.  As far as these observations are concerned, there is a correction that needs to be made in #11.1.

Chairman Wright:  Yes, we just discussed that.

Mr. Keegan:  Okay.  

Chairman Wright:  Any other questions…Mr. Perkins?

Mr. Perkins:  No, sir.

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from the public?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  I will go ahead and leave the Public Hearing open until the next meeting which will be on December 16th.

Mr. MacCartney:  Mr. Perkins, what would be helpful to me on both of these with whatever changes you are giving me…more so on Pappas then the other, if you could go down, when you send in whatever you are going to do, just give me…this is how we are addressing #1.  This is how we are addressing #2 and then I can maybe cut and paste some that and work on that.  It will also work as a reminder, so I don’t have to re-event the wheel 10 days from now.
Mr. Perkins:  No, problem.

Chairman Wright:  I will take a motion to adjourn the meeting.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to adjourn the meeting of December 2, 2021; seconded by Mr. Lynch.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

						Respectfully submitted,

						Kathleen Kivlehan
						Secretary
						Zoning Board of Appeals
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